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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 

COMMISSIONERS: Joseph J. Simons, Chairman 
Noah Joshua Phillips
Rohit Chopra 
Rebecca Kelly Slaughter 
Christine S. Wilson 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The Federal Trade Commission (“Commission”), having initiated an investigation of 
certain acts and practices of Aaron’s Inc. (“Respondent”), Rent-A-Center, Inc., and Buddy’s 
Newco, LLC, and Respondent having been furnished thereafter with a copy of the draft 
Complaint that counsel for the Commission proposed to present to the Commission for its 
consideration and which, if issued by the Commission, would charge Respondent with violations 
of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45; and 

Respondent, its attorneys, and counsel for the Commission having thereafter executed an 
Agreement Containing Consent Order (“Consent Agreement”), containing an admission by 
Respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid draft Complaint, a statement 
that the signing of said Consent Agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not 
constitute an admission by Respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in such 
Complaint, or that the facts as alleged in such Complaint, other than jurisdictional facts, are true, 
and waivers and other provisions as required by the Commission’s Rules; and 

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and having determined it had 
reason to believe that Respondent has violated the said Act, and that a Complaint should issue 
stating its charges in that respect, and having accepted the executed Consent Agreement and 
placed such Consent Agreement on the public record for a period of thirty (30) days for the 
receipt and consideration of public comments, now in further conformity with the procedure 
described in Commission Rule 2.34, 16 C.F.R. § 2.34, the Commission hereby makes the 



 

 

         
                 
        

              
           

 

  

           
  

     
          
        

        
  

          
              

          
    

          
            

  

     

            
    

           
            
 

              
   

          
             

    

1. Respondent Aaron’s Inc., is a corporation organized, existing, and doing business under 
and by virtue of the laws of the State of Georgia, with its headquarters and principal place 
of business located at 400 Galleria Parkway SE, Suite 300, Atlanta, Georgia 30339. 

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject matter of this proceeding 
and of the Respondent, and the proceeding is in the public interest. 

ORDER 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that, as used in this Order, the following definitions shall 
apply: 

A. “Aaron’s” or “Respondent” means Aaron’s Inc., its directors, officers, partners, 
employees, agents, representatives, successors, and assigns; and the joint ventures, 
subsidiaries, 



 

 

         

             
          

       
        
  

         
            

      
  

           
         

       
      

          
           

        
            
           

            
    

  

   

             
          

          
         

            
         

       

I. “Consent Agreement” means the Agreement Containing Consent Order. 

J. “Consumer Rental Contracts” means contracts that provide a consumer with a consumer 
good through a leasing arrangement that terminates when the consumer acquires 
ownership or the lessor takes repossession of the consumer good. Consumer Rental 
Contracts are also referred to as rent-to-
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	A. “Aaron’s” or “Respondent” means Aaron’s Inc., its directors, officers, partners, employees, agents, representatives, successors, and assigns; and the joint ventures, subsidiaries, partnerships, divisions, groups, and affiliates controlled by Aaron’...
	B. “Buddy’s” means Buddy’s Newco, LLC, d/b/a Buddy’s Home Furnishings, is a limited liability company organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal address at 4705 S. Apopka Vinela...
	C. “RAC” means Rent-A-Center, Inc., a corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal address at 5501 Headquarters Drive, Plano, Texas 75024.
	D. “Commission” means the Federal Trade Commission.
	E. “Aaron’s Franchisee” means a Third Party business owner who operates a RTO Retail Center under the Aaron’s corporate trademark or associated brands.
	F. “Antitrust Laws” means the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 41 et seq., the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1 et seq., and the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 12 et seq.
	G. “Board Member” means a member of the board of directors or board of managers for a specified entity.
	H. “Competitor” means any Third Party that, directly or through a subsidiary, owns operates, or is a franchisor of, one or more RTO Retail Centers in the United States, including Buddy’s and RAC.
	I. “Consent Agreement” means the Agreement Containing Consent Order.
	J. “Consumer Rental Contracts” means contracts that provide a consumer with a consumer good through a leasing arrangement that terminates when the consumer acquires ownership or the lessor takes repossession of the consumer good.  Consumer Rental Cont...
	K. “Executive Team” means Board Members, CEO, President, Executive Vice President, and General Counsel of Respondent, and all employees of Respondent in a senior management position with decision-making authority over Respondent’s business operations.
	L. “Non-Competition Agreement” means any agreement or covenant not to operate an RTO Retail Center within a specified geographic area for a specified period.
	M. “Third Party” means any natural person, partnership, corporation, association, trust, joint venture, or other business or legal entity other than Respondent.
	N. “Reciprocal Purchase Agreement” means a contingent agreement or series of contingent agreements through which Respondent or an Aaron’s Franchisee agrees to close a RTO Retail Center and sell its Consumer Rental Contracts to a Competitor or its fran...
	O. “RTO Retail Center” means a store with a physical location that primarily offers consumer goods through Consumer Rental Contracts.
	A. Respondent shall not, directly or indirectly, enter into, solicit, invite, facilitate, or enable any Third Party to enter into, a Reciprocal Purchase Agreement.
	B. Respondent shall not enforce, in whole or part, any Non-Competition Agreement that was part of, or contingent on, a Reciprocal Purchase Agreement.
	C. In any future franchise agreement or any renewal of an existing franchise agreement, Respondent shall specifically prohibit the Aaron’s Franchisee from entering into a Reciprocal Purchase Agreement with a Third Party.
	A. Designation and retention of an antitrust compliance officer, who may be an existing employee of Respondent, to supervise the design, maintenance, and operation of the program;
	B. Training the Executive Team regarding Respondent’s obligations under this Order and the Antitrust Laws:
	C. Policies and procedures for employees and representatives of Respondent to ask questions about, and report violations of, this Order and the Antitrust Laws confidentially and without fear of retaliation of any kind;
	D. Policies and procedures for disciplining employees and representatives of Respondent for failure to comply with this Order and the Antitrust Laws; and
	Retention of documents and records sufficient to record Respondent’s compliance with its obligations under this Paragraph IV of this Order, including but not limited to records showing that employees and representatives of Respondent have received all...
	A.  Respondent shall submit:
	B. Each compliance report shall set forth in detail the manner and form in which Respondent intends to comply, is complying, and has complied with this Order.  Each compliance report shall contain sufficient information and documentation to enable the...
	C. Respondent shall verify each compliance report in the manner set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 1746 by the Chief Executive Officer or another officer or employee specifically authorized to perform this function.  Respondent shall submit an original and 2 co...
	A. The proposed dissolution of Aaron’s Inc.;
	B. The proposed acquisition, merger, or consolidation of Aaron’s Inc; or
	C. Any other change in Respondent including, but not limited to, assignment and the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries, if such change might affect compliance obligations arising out of this Order.
	A. Access, during business office hours of the Respondent and in the presence of counsel, to all facilities and access to inspect and copy all business and other records and all documentary material and electronically stored information as defined in ...
	B. To interview officers, directors, or employees of the Respondent, who may have counsel present, regarding such matters.
	A. Agree to service of process of all Commission subpoenas issued under Rule 3.34 of the Commission Rules of Practice, 16 C.F.R.  3.34; and
	B. Negotiate in good faith with the Commission to provide a declaration, affidavit, and/or sponsoring witness, if necessary, to establish the authenticity and admissibility of any documents and/or data that Respondent produces or has produced to the C...

